OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 15 May 2012 commencing at 10.00 am and finishing at 11.55 am.

Present:

Councillor Patrick Greene - in the Chair

Councillors:

Don Seale Pete Handley G.A. Reynolds David Robertson Alyas Ahmed Jenny Hannaby Tony Harbour M. Altaf-Khan Rodney Rose David Harvey John Sanders Alan Armitage Lynda Atkins Steve Hayward **Larry Sanders** Marilyn Badcock Mrs J. Heathcoat Bill Service Mike Badcock Hilary Hibbert-Biles Dave Sexon Ian Hudspeth Maurice Billington Chip Sherwood Sarah Hutchinson Norman Bolster C.H. Shouler Iain Brown Ray Jelf Dr Peter Skolar **Nick Carter** Keith R. Mitchell CBE Roz Smith Jim Couchman Stewart Lilly Val Smith Richard Stevens Lorraine Lindsay-Gale Tony Crabbe Roy Darke A.M. Lovatt Lawrie Stratford Arash Fatemian Sajjad Hussain Malik John Tanner Anda Fitzgerald-Kieron Mallon Alan Thompson Melinda Tillev O'Connor Charles Mathew David Turner Jean Fooks Caroline Newton Mrs C. Fulljames David Nimmo-Smith Nicholas P. Turner **Anthony Gearing** Neil Owen Carol Viney Michael Gibbard Zoé Patrick Michael Waine Susanna Pressel **David Wilmshurst** John Goddard Janet Godden Anne Purse Tim Hallchurch MBE

The Council considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting and decided as set out below. Except insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the agenda and reports, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes.

168/12 ELECTION TO CHAIRMAN 2012/13 COUNCIL YEAR

(Agenda Item 1)

Before inviting nominations for the office of Chairman of the Council, Councillor Patrick Greene (the retiring Chairman) addressed the meeting, reflecting on his year in office. He thanked the Vice-Chairman (Councillor Seale), his wife and his Personal Assistant (Sara Lenihan) for all their help and support during the year. He further paid tibute to Councillor Keith Mitchell and congratulated Councillor Ian Hudspeth on his forthcoming appointment as Leader of the Council.

He then presented his wife with a consort badge and some flowers and presented Sara Lenihan with flowers as a token of his appreciation.

Councillors Stevens (on behalf of Councillor Brighouse), Patrick, Larry Sanders and Mitchell paid tribute to Councillor Greene.

Councillor Stevens proposed and Councillor John Sanders seconded that Councillor Susanna Pressel be elected Chairman of the Council for the 2012/13 Council Year.

Councillor Patrick proposed and Councillor Armitage seconded that Councillor Anne Purse be elected Chairman of the Council for the 2012/13 Council Year.

Councillor Mitchell proposed and Councillor Robertson seconded that Councillor Don Seale be elected Chairman of the Council for the 2012/13 Council Year.

Forty-eight members voting in favour of Councillor Greene, 12 members voting in favour of Councillor Purse and 8 members voting in favour of Councillor Pressel, Councillor Seale was declared elected Chairman of the Council for the 2012/13 Council Year. He read and signed the statutory Declaration of Acceptance of Office and then took the Chair.

RESOLVED: (by 48 votes) that Councillor Don Seale be elected as Chairman of the Council for the 2012/13 Council Year.

169/12 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR THE 2012/13 COUNCIL YEAR

(Agenda Item 2)

The Chairman called for nominations for the office of Vice-Chairman. Councillor Mitchell proposed and Councillor Service seconded that Councillor Tim Hallchurch be elected Vice-Chairman of the Council for the 2012/13 Council Year. There being no other nominations and no dissent, Councillor Hallchurch was declared elected. He read and signed the statutory Declaration of Acceptance of Office.

RESOLVED: (nem con) that Councillor Tim Hallchurch be elected Vice-Chairman of the Council for the 2012/13 Council Year.

170/12 MINUTES

(Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED: that the Minutes of the Meeting held on 3 April 2012 be approved and signed subject to the following amendments:

Minute 157/12 to be corrected by:

Deletion of the amendment set out in paragraph 3 and its substitution by the following:

"Council records the views expressed during the debate and that these are taken into consideration by the Cabinet and Adult Services Scrutiny."

Replacement of the word "venerable" in bullet point 12 by the word "vulnerable".

Replacement of the word "visits" in bullet point 14 with the word "visit".

171/12 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

(Agenda Item 4)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors: Bonner, Brighouse, Chapman, Jones and Strangwood.

172/12 OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS

(Agenda Item 6)

The Chairman reported as follows:

The Chairman welcomed the Council's new member Councillor Caroline Newton who had been elected County Councillor for the Watlington Division. He asked Council to receive the report of the Returning Officer as set out on the face of the Agenda.

RESOLVED: to receive the report from the County Returning officer as set out on the face of the Agenda.

The Chairman reported that many local events and street parties were taking place across the County to celebrate the Queen's Jubilee and the Olympics. These were, in the main, being organised by district, town and parish councils.

Notable events included the lighting of Beacons across the County on Monday 4 June and the Olympic Torch Relay on Monday 9 & Tuesday 10 July 2012. He drew members attention to a briefing note providing the detail of where and when these events would be taking place which had been placed on member's seats. Details could also be found on the Council's website.

173/12 APPOINTMENTS

(Agenda Item 7)

The Chairman sought nominations for the appointment to the office of Leader of the Council.

Councillor Waine proposed and Councillor Skolar seconded Councillor Hudspeth for the appointment to the office of Leader of the Council.

Councillor Tanner proposed and Councillor Stevens seconded Councillor Brighouse for the appointment to the office of Leader of the Council.

Forty-seven members voting in favour of Councillor Hudspeth and 8 members voting in favour of Councillor Brighouse, Councillor Hudspeth was declared elected. Councillor Hudspeth then led warm tributes to the former Leader of the Council, followed by Councillors Skolar, Patrick, Stevens (on behalf of Councillor Brighouse, Larry Sanders, Shouler, Handley and Fatemian. He then paid tribute to Councillor Robertson, Former Deputy Leader of the Council for his work.

A report by the Leader of the Council (a copy of which is attached to the signed copy of the minutes) was then circulated to all members of the Council The report set out the appointments the Leader of the Council had made, together with the delegation of functions of the Cabinet.

RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Hudspeth, seconded by Councillor Rose and carried nem con)

- (a) to appointment Councillor Ian Hudspeth to the office of Leader of the Council;
- (b) in the light of (a) above to receive the report of the Leader setting out the names, addresses and electoral divisions of the people appointed to the Cabinet and their respective portfolio's (a copy of which is attached to the signed copy of the minutes).

174/12 COMMITTEES AND REVIEW OF POLITICAL BALANCE

(Agenda Item 8)

The Council had before them a report by the County Solicitor and Monitoring Officer (CC8), together with an updated membership of committees and subcommittees (Annex 2 to the Schedule of Business).

Councillor Seale moved and Councillor Hallchurch seconded the recommendations set out on the face of the Agenda as amended by Annex 2 (amended Annex 1) attached to the Schedule of Business (a copy of which is attached to the signed copy of the minutes) and the Addenda tabled at the meeting containing an additional recommendation (c) as follows:

"(c) subject to the terms of reference agreed at (b) to confirm the remaining existing terms of reference of committees and sub-committees."

RESOLVED: (nem con) to:

- (a) confirm the political balance on committees shown in Annex 3 to the report;
- (b) approve the amended and new terms of reference as set out in Annex 1a and 1b and appoint to committees the councillors and co-opted members shown in Annex 1, subject to any changes reported at the meeting;
- (c) subject to the terms of reference agreed at (b) to confirm the remaining existing terms of reference of committees and subcommittees.

175/12 OFFICER SCHEME OF DELEGATION

(Agenda Item 9)

The Council had before them a report by the Monitoring Officer (CC9) which set out proposed changes to the Council's Officer Scheme of Delegation set out in the Constitution.

RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Seale, seconded by Councillor Hallchurch and carried nem con) to note the amendments to Article 11 of the Constitution identified in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the report and to approve the scheme of Officer Delegation contained in Part 7.3 of the Council's Constitution.

176/12 REPORT OF THE CABINET

(Agenda Item 10)

The Council noted the report of the Cabinet Meeting on 17 April 2012 (CC10).

177/12 STANDARDS COMMITTEE - ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12

(Agenda Item 11)

The Council had before them the Annual report 2011/12 of the Standards Committee (CC11).

The Chairman sought agreement from Council to allow the Independent Chairman of the Standards Committee to introduce her report. The Council Agreed (nem con) accordingly.

Following the Chairman's presentation, the Council thanked Mrs Griffiths for her work on the Standards Committee and presented her with some flowers.

RESOLVED: (nem con) to receive the report.

...... 178/12 MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT AND COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE (Agenda Item 12)

The Council had before them a report by the County Solicitor & Monitoring Officer (CC12) which set out a Code of Conduct and complaint resolution procedure for Council's consideration.

RESOLVED: to

- (a) approve and adopt the Members' Code of Conduct at Annex 1 to the report, to take effect from 1 July 2012 on the repeal of the present Code and standards arrangements;
- (b) require the Monitoring Officer to make any consequential amendments to the approved Code on the publication by the Secretary of State of Regulations relating to the registration and declaration of interests;
- (c) approve the complaints resolution procedures outlined at Annex 2 to the report as the means of resolving allegations that members have not complied with the Code.

	in the Chair
Date of signing	